Ruth Enis Collection



Ruth Enis (left) during a tour for her quarries research (unknown photographer, c. early 1970s)

The Library of the Faculty of Architecture and Town Planning
The Technion – Israel Institute of Technology, Haifa 3200003

(Arrangement and description by Dr. Neta Feniger, November – December 2016)

Contents

DESCRIPTIVE SUMMARY	3
2 BIOGRAPHICAL NOTE	4
SCOPE AND CONTENTS	4
4 CONTAINER LIST	6
Series I – Design Project	7
Subseries 1 - plans and maps in large format	7
Subseries 2 - plans and maps	
Subseries 3 - Correspondence and Documents	C
Subseries 3 - Publication	C
Series II – Scholarly Work	<u>C</u>
Subseries 1 – Documents	
Subseries 2 – Involvement in professional organizations	10
Subseries 3 – Research Materials	10
Subseries 4 – Manuscripts	11
Series III - Technion - teaching and administration	11
Subseries 1 – Administration	11
Series IV - Other professional work	13
Series V – Correspondence	13
Series VI – Slides Collection	
Subseries 1 – Travelling	
Subseries 2 – Teaching	16
Subseries 2 – Mixed	16
Series VII - Printed Matter	16
Subseries 1 – Collected Materials	16
Subseries 2 - Historical Research	17
Subseries 3 – Journals and Magazines	17
Series VIII - Photos	17
Subseries 1 – Photos	17
Subseries 2 – Films	18
Series IX – Crypto collections	18
Annex 1 – list of journals and magazines	19
Anney 2 _ list of hooks	20

1 DESCRIPTIVE SUMMARY

Creator: Ruth Enis (1928-)

Title: Professor Ruth Enis Collection

Dates: 1960s-2000s

Abstract:

The materials in this collection reflect Enis' work as scholar, teacher, and as practitioner of landscape architecture. It displays her work as a professor of landscape architecture in the Faculty of Architecture and Town Planning at the Technion – Israel Institute of Technology, her devotion to research and teaching on the history of landscape architecture in general and in Israel in particular. Her most important historical studies are on landscape in Kibbutzim, and on a large number of Israeli graduates from the Ahlem Agriculture and Horticulture School in Germany and their vital impact on the Zionist creation of designed landscapes. The collection also holds Enis' professional work as a landscape designer, revealing her involvement in the creation of the Israeli landscape, especially her planning of school yards and Kibbutzim landscapes.

The collection described here is a fragment of Enis' extensive archive, the rest of which is located in her private house. The materials arranged in this collection were given to the guardianship of Professor Nurit Lissovsky at the Faculty of Architecture and Town Planning, the Technion – Israel Institute of Technology, Haifa, and are held at the Architectural Heritage Research Center and managed by the Faculty of Architecture and Town Planning Library.

Subjects:

Jews--Germany--History--20th Century; Israel--History; Landscape architecture; Landscape architecture--History; Women in landscape architecture; Israel--Technion; Kibbutzim;

Languages: English; German, Dutch; Hebrew [bulk] **Quantity:** 25 boxes, 164 files, 2 drawers with plans.

Repository: The Faculty of Architecture and Town Planning Library, The Technion - Israel Institute of

Technology.

2 BIOGRAPHICAL NOTE:

Ruth Enis was born in 1928, in Romania, to a Jewish family. In 1937, she immigrated to Palestine with her parents and brother and settled in Tel Aviv. In 1939, during a visit to her maternal grandmother with her mother, World War II broke out and she was unable to return to Palestine. During the war, she was deported together with her mother to a work camp in the Ukraine. With her father's efforts and Red Cross involvement, they were finally able to return to Palestine in 1943.

The 15-year-old Enis studied in the youth village in Ben Shemen (1944-1945) where she was introduced to gardening, and finished her high school diploma at the Herzliya Hebrew Gymnasium in Tel Aviv (1946-1947). She started working as a draftswoman in the office of renowned architect Zeev Rechter (1947-1948) and joined the *Haganah* (a Zionist military organization operating during British Mandate of Palestine). After the State of Israel was established in 1948, she served in the Israeli army (1948-1949).

In 1954, Enis received her B.Arch from the faculty of Architecture at the Technion. She was one of the first female master students at the faculty of architecture, receiving her degree in urban planning in 1956 under Professor Alexander Klein. Her thesis dealt with the planning of open spaces of schools in the city. After graduation, Enis worked as a teaching and research assistant to Prof. Klein and later with Haim Latte who introduced her to landscape architecture. Latte was a graduate of the Ahlem School in Germany, a prolific writer, teacher and garden designer. Together they designed Kibbutzim gardens (e.g. Ayelet HaShachar, Geva, Shomrat, and others) as well as private gardens.

In 1958, she travelled to the Netherlands, where her husband enrolled at a PhD program and she studied towards a professional diploma in garden design. She designed the biblical garden at the international garden exhibit in Rotterdam (the Floriade-60) and was appointed as the chief landscape architect for the garden department in The Hague municipality (1960-1964), where she was involved in the master plan for playgrounds, sport grounds and recreational facilities, and in detailed plans for several municipal gardens.

In 1965, she returned to Israel and opened a private practice in landscape architecture, designing numerous projects across Israel, including a plan for Kiryat Yam (1964-67), two landscape plans for colleges (Rupin, 1964-1972; Tel Hai,1968-1971), plans for the rehabilitation of several quarries (Emek Quarry 1969-70, Vered 1969-70, Natuf 1975-76, Migdal Zedek,1976-78), and site plans for several nature reserves (Mt. Carmel, Mt. Miron 1969-70, Hulah 1970-72), to name a few.

Enis began her academic career in 1970, working on a curriculum for a landscape architecture program at the Faculty of Architecture and Town Planning at the Technion. On top of teaching classes such as history of landscape architecture, seminars on documentation and preservation of historic gardens and studio classes, she was involved in academic funded research projects (including "Landscape and Recreation in the Galilee", 1966-67; "Playing Fields – Planning Guidelines", 1970-71; "Protection of Urban Desert Landscape", 1989-90). Her main academic research was about quarries rehabilitation, Kibbutzim landscape (Enis and Ben Arav. 1994. *Sixty Years of Kibbutz Gardens and Landscape* (1910–1970)), and Ahlem graduates work in Israel (Enis. 1998. "The Impact of the Israelitische Gartenbauschule Ahlem on Landscape Architecture in Israel." *Die Gartenkunst*).

Enis was also involved in numerous survey and research endeavors as part of her professional and academic work. She took part in survey and planning teams in Israel sponsored by different governmental organizations (including "Banyas, Landscape and Recreation Survey and Plan, for Israel Land Administration, Nature Reserve Authority", and the Regional Council of the Upper Galilee, 1968-69; "Quarries and Landscape: Analysis of the Problem and Recommendation", for the Ministry of Interior and the Ministry of Development and Israel Land Administration, 1971-72; "The Recreation Demands and Potential of the National Park Carmel", for the Nature Reserve Authority and Ministry of Tourism and the Jewish National Fund, 1972-74; "Landscape Evolution for the City of Modiin", for the Ministry of Public Works and Housing, 1994-95).

3 SCOPE AND CONTENTS

The collection's material was given by Enis to Professor Lissovsky's guardianship, while Enis still holds the rights. The material comprises of only a fragment of Enis collection, the rest of which is still located in her private home. It

is unknown why these specific materials and not others were given to Lissovsky. We found the materials arranged in marked boxes (labeled: books, students' work, correspondence, etc.) and large office binders marked by Enis (mostly research materials and slides collection). Some of the material, mostly regarding design projects, including the plans, had already been surveyed by other researchers who had partly arranged them in recent years. It is unknown whether the original order had been kept, but we assume that it was not. We rearranged these materials according to context. Most of the material was found in good condition.

Wherever possible, the original order of Enis' papers was preserved. The most significant change in arrangement we made was in Enis' correspondence files. These were found with no particular order (neither by years nor by names) and some letters were found in random files. Therefore, were re-arranged the letters by name of author or recipient in order to be more cohesive for future researchers. The series can be distinguished according to various aspects in Enis' career: her work as a landscape architect, her scholarly career as a researcher of landscape architecture, and her academic career as a professor at the Faculty of Architecture and Town Planning in the Technion.

Series I – Design Project: This series contains material of design projects by Enis. The first subseries is *Plans and Maps in Large Format*: the material is rolled or flattened and kept in two plans-drawers. These are plans in different scales, including garden plans, planting plans, details of projects ranging between schools, parks, Kibbutzim, private houses and more. The poor physical condition of the material does not allow scholars access at this point. The plans and maps are arranged by project names. While a better and more precise archival arrangement of the maps and plans would be favorable, it is not possible at the moment due to the condition of the maps and plans and the available storage facility. The second subseries *Plans and Maps* includes plans and maps originally folded and arranged in folders by projects. These include her large project of quarries rehabilitation, plans for a consultation project in Ashdod and others (B01/f01- B01/f05). The third subseries, *Correspondence and Documents*, includes documents and letters regarding design projects (B01/f06 - /B01/f07). The last subseries holds Enis' project publications (B02).

Series II – Scholarly Work: The series contains material regarding Enis' work as a scholar of landscape architecture. This series includes the subseries *Documents* with material regarding her work (e.g. research proposals, correspondence regarding her publication and more). The second subseries *Involvement in Professional Organizations* holds specifically documents regarding her engagement in international and national professional organizations (ECLAS, IFLA, IUFRO, DoCoMoMo, The Council for Conservation of Heritage Sites in Israel (*Mo'atsah le-shimur atare moreshet be-Yiśrael*), and more). The third subseries *Research Material* contains material collected by Enis for her own research. This includes two main research projects, namely her study on Kibbutzim – which contains materials she collected, as well as her students' research papers on Kibbutzim (B06/f07 –B08/f07); and her study on Ahlem graduates which contains files on each graduate including interviews, and materials received from the graduate or his family (B04/f01 - B06/f01). It also contains a full draft of her book with Yosef Ben Arav on the landscape of Kibbutzim (Enis and Ben Arav (1994), *Sixty Years of Kibbutz Gardens and Landscape* [Hebrew]).

Series III – Technion - teaching and administration: This series contains material regarding Enis' work as a faculty member at the Faculty of Architecture and Town Planning at the Technion. The first subseries, *Administration*, contains administration papers regarding financial matters, general circulars, faculty letters and administration documents etc. The second series, *Teaching*, contains files with printed slides for lectures. Subseries 3, *Students*, includes student advisory files, and a classified file which contains reference and recommendation letters by Enis to others (B10/f12). This file cannot be accessed by researchers. Subseries 4, *Undergraduate Students' Papers*, contains students' papers collected by Enis. Enis' original order was kept, and papers are arranged mostly by topic and not by name of student, class or year. Some papers are in large A3 format and are kept in larger archival boxes.

Series IV - Other professional work: This series contains one file regarding Enis professional consultant work on design projects by others (B11/f08)

Series V – Correspondence: This series contains Enis' correspondence files on all aspect of her career. It includes letter Enis received, which are now filed in the subseries *Incoming* (B15/f01- B15/f10) and letters by Enis to others (drafts, copies and faxes original), now filed in the subseries *Outgoing* (B16/f01- B16/f10). Letters in German, Dutch, and English are arranged by roman alphabetical orders (Incoming: B15/f01- B15/f06; Outgoing: B16/f01- B16/f06), letters in Hebrew were filed separately and arranged by Hebrew alphabetical order (Incoming: B15/f07- B15/f09; Outgoing: B16/f07- B16/f09), in both subseries (*Incoming* and *Outgoing*). The alphabetical order is by last name of writer or recipient. In many cases the writer/recipient's last name is not written on the letter itself. These names were tracked in other letters or by extensive research. Two examples are extensive correspondence between Enis and

Annelise Nassuth and Doortje Haan. While both full names don't appear on the letter (to Enis, or from Enis), we were able to understand through the letters' contents and other descriptive notes who these persons were. Full names are written in pencil on the binders. In a small number of cases (single letter from writer/ to recipients) where the last name was not found, letters are arranged by private name. An effort was made to arrange all letters from specific writer/ to specific recipient together in a binder. The series also contains letter to Enis by unknown, letters to unknown by Enis, and letters by others to others which were found among Enis' letters. The correspondence is related to Enis' work at the Technion and her scholarly work and includes letters from Sven Ingvar Anderson, Gerda Golwitzer, Kenneth Helphand, Ita Heinze-Greenberg, Paul Freiberg, Annemarie Lund, Ronald Lovinger, Arthur Lieberman, Dusan Orgin, Marc Trieb, Martha Schwartz, Achva Stein, Mordechai Schechter, Ann Whiston Spirn, Erv Zube and Joachim Wolschke-Bulmahn, among others. The last subseries *Personal Correspondence* includes letters to and from Enis regarding personal and family matters and includes holiday greeting cards, letters to the Enis family received during sabbaticals and others (B16/f11).

Series VI – Slides Collection: This is a collection of albums of slides of photos taken by Enis. Most photos were taken by Enis while travelling in Europe and North America. Some albums contain slides for teaching lectures and include reproduction of photos, maps, and plans from books. The collection is arranged by the proximate purpose of slides: Travelling (B17/f02- B19/f04), Teaching (B19/f05- B20/f02), Mixed (B20/f03- B20/f06). Slides were kept in the 27 original ring binders (in only once case, due to the folder's poor condition slides were taken out and moved to cardboard folder) arranged by Enis. The bulk of slides were found in good condition, some were damaged but were kept in their original place. We found a hand-written list of slides binders made by Enis (B17/f01), but as we couldn't find the original marking on most binder we renumbered them by type (travelling, teaching, mixed) and then alphabetically.

Series VII – Printed Matter: this series contains materials collected by Enis. Materials are arranged in 3 subseries: *Collected Materials* (B21/01 –B22/03) contains postcards collection, a collection of tourist maps and booklets and leaflets from Enis' travelling, papers not directly connected to her research and other materials; The second subseries - *Historical Research* (B21/04 –B22/07) contains articles (not by Enis) collected for specific subjects. The third subseries contains *Journals and Magazines*. A list of journals is attached in Annex 1. Annex 2 contains a list of books found in the Enis collection and transferred with her permission to the Faculty of Architecture and Town Planning library with a specially prepared Professor Enis ex-libris. The bulk of the books was from the J.J. Levinson library and holds his ex-libris. It is unknown when Enis received the books and which ones were part of her day-to-day library.

Series VIII – Photos and objects: The series contains photos taken by Enis or others, including many historic airphotos of Palestine/Israel, photos taken in quarries, probably for her extensive research and design projects in quarries rehabilitation, and travel pictures arranged in large album. This series also contains a bulk of developed films of Enis' photographs, some contains photographs of Enis' students' presentations.

Series IX – Crypto Collections:

This series hold three crypto collections of J.J. Levinson (1881 – unknown), Yaccov Shoor (1903-1977) and Yosef Ben Arav (1912-1998). The first contains a lecture book by Levinson, an American landscape architect, a lectures book from his studies at Yale University, dated 1903-1904. This lecture book was found with Levinson's book collection which was part of Enis' book collection. It is unknown when, why and how these were given to Enis. The Shoor collection includes materials received from Shoor, an Ahlem graduate from Kibbutz Ashdot Yaacov Meuhad, who worked as a gardener and landscape designer. Materials were probably given to Enis by Shoor's descendants for her Ehlem Graduates research. The collection contains paper by Shoor ("Gardening in Israel", 1956), letters from institutions and other gardeners, lists of plants, and some personal letters. Material in the Shoor collection are dating 1940-1956. The Ben Arav collection holds research materials collected by Ben Arav, a Kibbutz gardener and an author of several book about gardening, regarding gardens and landscapes in Israel, including copies of plans, articles and photos (some by Ben Arav), and index cards with Ben Arav's notes. It also includes his research on gardens in the Middle East and Muslim countries. It is unknown when did Enis received this collection.

4 CONTAINER LIST

The Ruth Enis Collection is arranged in 9 series. Each series consists of several subseries. The arrangement reflects the main topics of the archival materials and the main types of material.

Series I – Design Projects

Subseries 1 - Plans and maps in large format

Subseries 2 - Plans and maps

Subseries 3 - Correspondence and documents

Subseries 4 - Publications

Series II - Scholarly Work

Subseries 1 – Documents

Subseries 2 – Involvement in professional organizations

Subseries 3 – Research Materials

Subseries 4 – Manuscripts

Series III - Technion - Teaching and Administration

Subseries 1 – Administration

Subseries 2 – Documents

Subseries 3 - Teaching

Subseries 4 – Students

Subseries 5 - Undergraduate Students' papers

Series IV - Other professional work

Series V – Correspondence

Subseries 1 – Incoming

Subseries 2 – Outgoing

Subseries 3 – Personal correspondence

Subseries 4 – Letter to others by others

Series VI - Slides Collection

Subseries 1 – Travelling

Subseries 2 – Teaching

Subseries 3 - Mixed

Series VII - Printed Matter

Subseries 1 – Collected Materials

Subseries 2 – Historical Research

Subseries 3 - Journals and magazines

Series VIII - Photos

Subseries 1 – Photos

Subseries 1 – Films

Series IX - Crypto Collections

Series I – Design Project

Subseries 1 - plans and maps in large format

Box/file Title

drawer Agricultural school

drawer Ahava institute

drawer Ashrat (educational Institute)

drawer Beit Keshet

drawer Beit Yerach School

drawer Bikaat Kinarot (education institute)

drawer Burgata regional school

drawer Doctor's House

drawer HaReali School in Haifa

drawer Hodayot (school for immigrant youth) in Kibutz Lavi

drawer House of Professor Illberg

drawer Kibbutz Geva drawer Kibbutz HaOn

drawer Kibbutz Kabri

drawer Kibbutz Maayan Zvi

drawer Kibbutz Shamrat

drawer Kiryat Yam Public Space

drawer Neurim school

drawer Oranim - teacher seminar

drawer Poria Youth Hostel

drawer Ramat Gan - plot 6179

drawer Rinatia religious school (Mamlakhti-Dati)

drawer School in Rishon LeZion

drawer School in Kibbutz Beit HaShita

drawer School in Kfar Kasem

drawer Sitrin School

drawer Taanach school (Mamlakhti)

drawer Talmey El

drawer Tel Aviv National Park

drawer The Carmel Landscape Recreational potential

drawer unidentified

drawer Zur Moshe school

Subseries 2 - plans and maps

Box/file Title

B01/f01 Ashdod – Consulting

B01/f02 Plans under Pollack and Pruchter - Kibbutzim

B01/f03 Plans under Pollack and Pruchter- projects in cities

B01/f04 Quarries

B01/f05 Tel Dan

Subseries 3 - Correspondence and Documents

Box/file Title

B01/f06 Quarries
B01/f07 General

Subseries 3 - Publication

Box Title

B02 Publication of projects by Enis

Series II - Scholarly Work

Subseries 1 – Documents

Box/file Title

B03/f01 Lecture Transcripts and Paper Drafts

B03/f02 Research Proposals - correspondence and attached documents

B03/f03 Research Proposals and Reports

B03/f04 Ashdod – Consulting

B03/f05 Documents regarding Enis' Publications

Subseries 2 – Involvement in professional organizations

Box/file Title

B03/f06 Involvement in International Professional Organizations and Conferences

B03/f07 Involvement in Professional Organizations, Committees and Associations in Israel

Subseries 3 – Research Materials

Box/file Title

B03/f08 Bibliographic lists

B03/f09 Quarries

B04/f01 Ahlem - architects - Latte, Weiss

B04/f02 Ahlem - architects - Gerson, Lion

B04/f03 Ahlem - drafts 1

B04/f04 Ahlem - drafts 2

B04/f05 Ahlem - Gardening Graduates A

B04/f06 Ahlem - Gardening Graduates Ba- Bra

B04/f07 Ahlem - Gardening Graduates Bre - Bu

B04/f08 Ahlem - Gardening Graduates C-E

B04/f09 Ahlem - Gardening Graduates F

B05/f01 Ahlem - Gardening Graduates G

B05/f02 Ahlem - Gardening Graduates L-H

B05/f03 Ahlem - Gardening Graduates M-N

B05/f04 Ahlem - Gardening Graduates P-S

B05/f05 Ahlem - Gardening Graduates T-Z

B05/f06 Ahlem - general information 1

B05/f07 Ahlem - general information 2

B05/f08 Ahlem - graduates of other disciplines

B06/f01 Ahlem - Graduates who didn't immigrate to Israel

B06/f02 Ahlem - graduates with no additional information

B06/f03 Ahlem - VEA BERICHTE - VEA Reports 1

B06/f04 Ahlem - VEA BERICHTE - VEA Reports 2

B06/f05 Computer output of survey of architects I

B06/f06 Computer output of survey of architects II

B06/f07 Studies of Kibbutzim I

B06/f08 Studies of Kibbutzim II

B06/f09 Studies of Kibbutzim III

B07/f01 Ahlem graduate Paul Lion projects album 1 (large box)

B07/f02 Ahlem graduate Paul Lion projects album 2 (large box)

B08/f01 Studies of Kibbutzim IV

B08/f02 Studies of Kibbutzim V

B08/f03 Studies of Kibbutzim VI

B08/f04 Studies of Kibbutzim VII

B08/f05 Studies of Kibbutzim VIII

B08/f06 Studies of Kibbutzim IX

B08/f07 Studies of Kibbutzim X

Subseries 4 – Manuscripts

Box/file Title

B08/f08 Draft of Kibbutz Garden

Series III - Technion - teaching and administration

Subseries 1 - Administration

Box/file Title

B09/f01 40 Years' Reunion

B09/f02 Address Book

B09/f03	Financials I
B09/f04	Financials II
B09/f05	General Circulars
B09/f06	Technion and Faculty Administration Letters

Subseries 2 – Documents

Box/fileTitleB09/f07Landscape architecture department CurriculumB09/f08CV of Ruth EnisB09/f09CV received (of others)B09/f10Miscellaneous drafts by Enis

Subseries 3 – Teaching

Box/file TitleB10/f01 Class assignments B10/f02 Printed Slides I Ahlem B10/f03 Printed Slides II European City Planning B10/f04 Printed Slides III Gardens' Preservation B10/f05 Printed Slides IV History of Landscape Architecture B10/f06 Printed Slides V Kibbutzim history B10/f07 Printed Slides VI Kibbutzim, Ahlem graduates B10/f08Printed Slides VII Landscape in Israel 1 B10/f09 Printed Slides VIII Landscape in Israel 2 B10/f10 Printed Slides IX Urban Open Spaces B10/f11 Printed Slides X Moshavot

Subseries 4 – Students

Box/file	Title
B10/f12	Classified - reference letters and recommendations - Classified
B10/f13	Graduate students advisory
B10/f14	Miscellaneous letters regarding students

Subseries 5 - Undergraduate Students' papers

Box/file	Title
B11/f01	Course- Special Project - Cemeteries
B11/f02	Documentation and Preservation of Historic Gardens - Berwer Garden Bat Yam
B11/f03	Documentation and Preservation of Historic Gardens - Victory Garden Bat Yam
B11/f04	Documentation and Preservation of Historic Gardens A
B11/f05	Documentation and Preservation of Historic Gardens B
B11/f06	Gardens in Haifa
B11/f07	Gardens in Tel Aviv

Series IV - Other professional work

Box/file	Title
B11/f08	Expert assessments by Ruth Enis

Series V – Correspondence

Subseries 1 – Incoming

Box/file	Title
B15/f01	Letters to Ruth Enis A-D
B15/f02	Letters to Ruth Enis E-H
B15/f03	Letters to Ruth Enis I-L

B15/f04	Letters to Ruth Enis M-P
B15/f05	Letters to Ruth Enis Q-U
B15/f06	Letters to Ruth Enis V-Z
B15/f07	Letters to Ruth Enis ፣-ጽ
B15/f08	Letters to Ruth Enis ב-ה
B15/f09	Letters to Ruth Enis ה-ס
B15/f10	Letter to Ruth by unknown senders

Subseries 2 – Outgoing

Box/file	Title
B16/f01	Letters from Ruth Enis A-D
B16/f02	Letters from Ruth Enis E-H
B16/f03	Letters from Ruth Enis I-L
B16/f04	Letters from Ruth Enis M-P
B16/f05	Letters from Ruth Enis Q-U
B16/f06	Letters from Ruth Enis V-Z
B16/f07	Letters from Ruth Enis ז-א
B16/f08	Letter from Ruth Enis ב-ו
B16/f09	Letters from Ruth Enis ה-ס
B16/f10	Letters from Ruth Enis to Unknown

Subseries 3 – Personal correspondence

Box/file Title

B16/f11 personal correspondence

Subseries 4 – Letter to others by others

Box/file Title

B16/f12 letter to others by others

Series VI - Slides Collection

Box/file Title

B17/f01 List of slides collection by Enis

Subseries 1 - Travelling

Box/file Title

REB17/f02 Denmark, Sweden 1984

B17/f03 Denmark, Sweden 1987-8

B17/f04 England 1994

B17/f05 Europe - Vienna, Switzerland, Santorini 1998

B17/f06 Germany and Zurich

B17/f07 Holland 1983-4

B17/f08 Holland 1992

B18/f01 Israel 1968-1990

B18/f02 Italy 1984

B18/f03 Mexico 1987

B18/f04 Mexico and USA 1996

B18/f05 Norway 1996

B18/f06 Spain 1995

B18/f07 Sweden, Finland 1993

B18/f08 USA - California (Santa Barbara) 1981-2

B18/f09 USA - Arizona and more

B19/f01 USA - Boston, Washington DC, Seattle, Victoria, Portland, Tucson, Elizabeth Town 1991

B19/f02 USA - West coast

B19/f03 USA and Canada 1993

B19/f04 USA and Canada - NY, Vancouver and Seattle and California

Subseries 2 – Teaching

Box/file Title

B19/f05 Gardens in Paris

B19/f06 Jerusalem

B20/f01 Landscape in Israel

B20/f02 Historical gardens in Europe

Subseries 2 - Mixed

Box/file Title

B20/f03 Germany

B20/f04 Israel - historical photographs and travelling

B20/f05 Israel 1964-1968: travel, teaching and projects

REB20/f06 Mixed - travelling (Cyprus, Germany, and more), teaching, students' presentations

Series VII - Printed Matter

Subseries 1 – Collected Materials

Box/file Title

B21/f01 Miscellaneous: newspaper clippings, copies and originals from landscape journals,

newspaper clippings found in books

B21/f02 Landscape Architecture curricula

B21/f03 Documents

B21/f04 Leaflets, Booklets, etc.

B21/f05 Paper Proceedings by Sven Ingvar Anderson and Jette Abel

B21/f06 Postcards Collection

B21/f07 Manuscripts Copies not by Enis

B22/f01 Tourist maps I

B22/f02 Tourist maps III

B22/f03 Articles on Ahlem (not be Enis)

B22/f04	Articles on Kibbutzim (not by Enis)

B22/f05 Printed Materials from David Gilaad - Rose Gardening

B22/f06 Garden Art in the Middle East

Subseries 2 - Historical Research

Box/file Title

B22/f04 Articles on Ahlem (not be Enis)

B22/f05 Articles on Kibbutzim (not by Enis)

B22/f06 Printed materials from David Gilaad - Rose gardening

B22/f07 Garden art in the Middle East

$Subseries \ 3-Journals \ and \ Magazines$

Box Title

Journals and Magazines

Series VIII - Photos

Subseries 1 - Photos

Box/file Title

B24 "Pictures from trip abroad Aug-Sept 1958"

B25/f01 Air Photos of Israel/Palestine

B25/f02 Air Photos of Israel's North

B25/f03 Quarries

B25/f04 Unidentified Photos

Subseries 2 – Films

Box/file	Title
B25/f05	Films - Models and Plans by Enis
B25/f06	Films - Photographs by Enis
B25/f07	Films - Reproductions from Books
B25/f08	Films -Students' Presentations

Series IX – Crypto collections

Box/file	Title
B26/f01	J.J. Levinson Crypto Collection-Lectures' Book
B26/f02	Yaacov Shoor Crypto Collection
B26/f03	Yosef Ben Arav Crypto Collection - research materials 1
B26/f04	Yosef Ben Arav Crypto Collection - research materials 2
B26/f05	Yosef Ben Arav Crypto Collection - research materials 3
B26/f06	Yosef Ben Arav Crypto Collection - research materials 4
B26/f07	Yosef Ben Arav Crypto Collection - Gardens in Muslim countries

Annex 1 – list of journals and magazines

Bankunst und Werkform 1958-1962

Blauwe Kramwe 1990-2004

Blauwe Kramwe 1996-2004

Cultuurhistorie en het Van Morgen Ontwerpen aan betekenis (Bijlage bij Blauwe Kamer) 2001

De Kern van de Stedebouw 1999

Dto sleutel - Chemie 1997

Dto sleutel – Huisvesten 1997

Dto Sleutel - Verplaatsen 1997

Dto Sleutel - Voeden 1997

Dto Sleutel - Water 1997

Dto Visie Std Vision 1998 – 2040, 1997

Gids voor Planning en Ontwerp 2000, 2004

Groen 1997 - 2000

Journal of the Royal Town Planning Institute 1970-1971

Kuns in het Bentwoud Tien Projecten 1998

Landxchappelijke Kwaliteit in Beeld 2001

Openluchtrecreatie en Nationale Landschapsparken 1997

Planning 1990-1991

Sapel gek! 2000

Schatten uit het Bodemarchief Archeologie en Ontwerp 1999

Stad/Land 2000

Structuurvisie Openlucht-Recreatie 1997

Struin Natuur 1997

Annex 2 – list of books

title	author	year
Historic houses and their gardens	Charles Francis Osborne	MCMVIII
The century book of gardening	E.T. Cook	
The home book of trees and shrubs	J.J. Levinson	1949
Poisonous plants of the United States	Walter Conard Muenscher	1939
Farmer's Cyclopedia of Agriculture	Earley Vernon Wilcox and Clarance Beaman Smith	1922
If I were to make a garden	Erenst H. Wilson	1931
The book of Birds	The National Geographic society	1925
Lawn Care	O.M Scott and Sons Co.	1940
My garden Book	John Weathers	1924
Manual of Foresetry	Ralph Chipman Hawley	1918
A history of gardening in Scotland	E.H.M. Cox	1935
Trees of the countryside	Margaret McKenny	1942
Trees of Snata Barbara	Maunsell Van Rensselaer	1940
L'Art des Jardins I	R.H. Experrt	MCMXXXIV
L'Art des Jardins II	R.H. Experrt	MCMXXXIV
Cyclopedia of Farm Animals	L.H. Baileys	1922
Gardens old and new	John Leyland	
Lumber	Ralph Clement Bryant	1922
Fertility of the land	I.P. Roberts	1913
The Commonwealth of Industry	Benjamin A. Javits	1936
Gardening in sunny lands	Mrs. Philip Martineau	MCMXXIV
Garden Construction	T. Geoffrey and W.Henslow	1923
Forestry: an economic challenge	Arthur Newton Pack	1933
Gardening in the South	George R. Briggs	1931
In Florida Gardenns	Mrs. Millar Wilson and Mrs. John A. Ferguson	1924
How to know the Mosses	Elizabeth Marie Dunham	1916

The Worship of nature vol. I	James George Frazer		1926
•	•		
Gardens and homes of Mexico	Cora M. Oneal		1945
Cyclopedia of Farm Crops	L.H. Baileys		1921
The home book of trees and shrubs	J.J. Levinson		1949
Gaeden Colour	Margaret Waterfield		1922
Regional Suevey of New York and its Environs - vol. V Public Recreation	Lee F. Hanmer		1928
Nature's Garden	Neltje Blanchan		1920
The structure and life of forest trees	M. Busgen		1929
Garden Cinderellas	Helen Morgenthau Fox		1928
Adventures in Suburban Gardens	Louise Beebe Wilder		1931
Naturalist's Guide to the Americas	Victor E. Shelford		1926
Colour Schemes for the flower garden	Gertrud Jekyll		1925
Sun-dials roses of yesterday	Alice Morse Earle		1922
Forest Management	Herman H. Chapman		1931
Garden making by example	G. C. Taylor		1932
A Garden Bluebook of Annuals and Biennials	Henrey Stuart Ortloff		1924
	•		
The Garden Month by Month	Mabel Cabot Sedgwick		1907
Old Garden in and about Philadelphia	John T. Faris		1932
Magnolias	J. G. Millais		1927
The Tropical Garden	Loraine E.Kuck and Richard C.Tongg		1936
The horticulturist's rule book	L.H. Baileys		1905
The book of woodcraf	Ernest Thompson Seton		1921
Cpnsider the Lilies	W.E.Marshall		
Gardens of Colour	T. Geoffrey and W.Henslow		1934
Come into the Garden	Grace Tabor		1921
The book of garden design	Charles Thonger	MCMV	
My Rock Garden	Reginald Farrer		1930
A portrait of the artist as a young man	James Joyce		1916
Farm Forestrey	John Arden Ferguson		1916

Elements of Forestrey	F.F. Moon and N.C. Brown	1924
The Garden Handbook	Mary Rutherfurd Jay	MCMXXXI
New Gardens and Old	H. Stuart Ortloff	1934
The Beginner's Garden	Mrs. Francis King	1930
Gardening of beginnerrs	E.T. Cook	1925
The Flowers and Gardens of Madeira	Florence Du Cane	1926
Rangers of the shiled	Ovid Butler	1934
	V 11 V	1022
The Blossom of the year in Southern gardens	Julia Lester Dillon	1922
Flowering earth	Donald Culross Peattie	1939
The book of bulbs	F.F.Rockwell	1929
America's Garden Book	Louise Bush-Brown	1939
The Human side of trees	Royal Dixon and Franklyn Everett Fitch	1917
The Herbaceous Garden	Lady Martineau	1935
Check list of the forest trees of the United States their names and ranges	George B. Sudworth	1927
L'Art des Jardin II	Georges Gromort	MCMXXXIV
Book of the tree	Georgina Mase	1927
our garden flowers	Harriet L. Keeler	1922
Principles of agriculture	L.H. Baileys	1914
Text-book of land drainage	L.H. Baileys	1921
Five Acres	M.G. Kaind	1935
Poultry Craft	John H. Robinson	1904
Fungous Diseases of Plants	Benjamin Minge Duggar	1909
Beginning in agricultrure	Albert Russel Mann	1925
Manure and Fertilizers	Homer J. Wheeler	1924
Yearbook of the United State Department of Agric	culture	1895
The forcing book	L.H. Baileys	1906
The garden doctor	Fredrick J. Chittenden	MCMXX
Practical Nature Study	John M. Coulter	1909
Farm Poultry	George C. Waston	1901

Tree wounds and diseases	A.D. Webster		1916
The home book of trees and shrubs	J.J. Levinson		1949
The Garden of England		1907-8	
5 large books in Arabic			
Chroicales of the garden	Mrs. Francis King		1925
The American flower garden	Neltje Blanchan		1909
The Landscape Beautiful	Frank A. Waugh		1912
Better Lawns	Howard B. Sprague		1940
Garden Pools Large and Small	Leonidas W.Ramsey & Cahrles H. Lawerence		1931
Rock Garden Primer	Archie Thornton		1929
The Cactus and its home	Forrest Shreve		1931
The Home Garden Handbooks Rockwell Irises	F.F. Rockwell		1928
Mexican Plants for American Gardens	Cecile Hulse Matschat		1935
Trees and Shrubs of Prospect Park	Louis Harman Peet		1906
Flowers for every garden	Louise Bush-Brown		1927
Japanese Gardens	Mrs. Basil Taylour		1929
The Gardens of England	Charles Holme		1911
Alpine Flowers and Rock Gardens	Walter P. Wright		1925
Spanish and Portuguese Gardens	Rose Standish Nichols		1924
Our Ferns and their Haunts	Willard N. Clute		1901
The Fantastic Clan the Cactus Family	John James Thornber		1932
The seasons in a flower garden	Lousie Shelton		1906
Carnations and Picotees	H.W. Weguelin		1900
Field book of common Ferns	Herbert Durand		1928
The book of annuals	Alfred C. Hoties		1925
A primer of forestry - part I the forest	Gifford Pinchot		1903
A primer of forestry - part II practical forestry	Gifford Pinchot		1905
Letter of Transmittal	Henry Solon Graves		

The use book - regulations and instructions for		
the use of the national forest reserves	Gifford Pinchot	1906
Gardens near the sea	Alice Lounsberry	1910
The Religion of John Burroughs	Clifford Hazeldine Osborne	1930
A woodland garden	A.T. Johnson	1937
Rock Garden and Alpine Plants	Henry Correvon	1930
Water Gardenning	Frances Perry	1938
Constructive Forestry for private owner	J.J. Crumley	1926
How to grow roses	Robert Pyle	1923
Garden Lilies	Isabella Preston	1929
Lilac Culture	John C. Wister	1930
Our trees and how they serve us	Rufus M. Maddox	1925
American Plants for American Gardens	Edith A. Roberts	1929
The small place	Elsa Rehmann	1918
The Life and letters of John Burrough - Vol. I		
Three wonderland of the American West	Thomas D. Murphy	1912
American Counterpoint	Alexander Alland	1943
The world grows round my door- the story of the Kampong, a home on the edge of the Tropics	David Fairchild	1947
Twenty Fifth Annual Report of the Brooklyn Park Commissioners		1885
The city of New York Department of Parks Report		1906
Trees and Men	Elenaor Hughes-Gibb	1938
Memories of Samuel Parsons	Mabel Parsons	1926
Annual report Board of Park Commissioners City of Lowell		1913
Thirty Fourth Annual Report of the Department of Parks of the City of Brooklyn		
Public Prak Policies	Charles E. Doell	1930
Trees are good citizens	Charles Lathrop Pack	1922
Parks their design, equipment and use	George Burnap	1916
Thoreau's Walden	Henry Bugbee Kane	1946
the writings of John Burroughs vol I		1904

the writings of John Muir vol. IX	William Fredrick Bade	1923
I married a ranger	Dama Margaret Smith	1930
Greenhouse Management	L.R. Taft	1903
the writings of John Muir vol. IV	John Muir	1911
the writings of John Muir Vol I	John Muir	1913
Lawn Making	Leonard Barron	1923
Shade-Trees in Towns and Cities	William Solotaroff	1911
Parks and parks engineering	William T. Tyle	1916
Department of Parks city of New York Annual rep	ort	1899
National Park Portfolio	Robert Sterling Yard	1931
Nadia Stien zum gedenken		Haifa 1962
Tropical Forest of the Carabean	Tom Gill	1931
The Practice of Silviculture	Ralph C. Hawley	1929
A Natural History of Western Trees	Donald Culross Peattie	MCMLIII
Continuous bloom in America	Louise Shelton	1915
Garden Flowers in color	Daniel J. Foley	1956
The English Rock Garden	Reginald Farrer	1928
Aristocrats of the garden	Ernest H. Wilson	1926
Gardens in and about town	Minga Pope Duryea	1923
Lilies and their culture in North America	William N. Craig	1928
A natural history of Trees	Donald Culross Peattie	MCMLXIV
Roses of the World in Color	J. Horace McFarland	1935
After Fifty Years 1882-1932	J.J. Levinson	1932
A garden book for autumn and winter	Charles Dawning Lay	1924
Old Roses	Mrs. Frederick Love Keays	1935
Thrills of a naturalist quest	Raymond L. Ditmars	1933
Forest resources of the world	Raphael Zon & William N. Sparhawk	1923
Gardens of Rome	Gabriel Faure	
Terrasses et Jardins	Andre Lurcat	

Italian Gardens	George S. Elgood	
Birds of New York part I	John M. Clarke	1910
Birds of New York part II	John M. Clarke	1914
Too Loon Ad Dod on L Doorse	Hami'a Hamana M. Camai'd	MCMVVIII
Landscape Art Past and Present	Harriet Hammond McCormick	
Garden History of Georgia 1733-1933	Loraine M. Cooney	1933
House and Garden's book of Gardens	Richardson Wright	1921
Design in the little garden	Fletcher Steele	1924
Chinese Garden Architecture	Edwin Howard	1931
The Book of Gardens and Gardening	Reginald T. Townsend	1924
Italienische Garten	Georgina Masson	1963
Landscape Gardening	F.A. Waugh	1908
Making a bulb garden	Grace Tabor	1912
The garden of a commuter's wife		1924
The Art of Landscape Gardening	Humphry Repton	1907
the planning and planting of little gardens	George Dillistone	1920
Gardens in America	Marion Cran	1932
The Little Garden	Mrs. Francis King	1921
Around the Year in the garden	Frederick Frye Rockwell	1930
Gardner's Handbook	L.H. Baileys	1945
Italian Pleasure Garden	Rose Standish Nichols	1928
Historic Gardens of Virginia	The James River Garden Club	1923
Anniversary Ode	Louis K. Anspacher	1946
The story of gardening	Richardson Wright	MCMXXXV
Garden Portrait	Amelia Leavitt Hill	1923
Eye Spy	William Hamilton Gibson	1897
On the trail of ancient man	Roy Chapman Andrews	1924
The Human Side of Plants	Royal Dixon	1914
Beneath the Tropic Seas	William Beebe	1928
bankunst und werkform		1961 XIV

bankunst und werkform		1957 X
bankunst und werkform		1954 Vii
bankunst und werkform		1955 VIII
Forrest Valuation	Herman H. Chapman	1915
The Changing Metropolis	Frederick J. Tietze & James E. McKeown	1964
Abstracts of AESOP XIII congress Bergen Norway	y	1999
Laboratory Manual and Problems for Elements of Statistical Methods	Albert E. Waugh	1938
Housing the Aging	Wilma Dinahue	1954
Regional Governance Promise and Performance		1973
State of the world	Lester R. Brown	1989
Location theory and the shoe and leather industries	Edgar M. Hoover Jr.	1937
The Urban Village	Joseph Eaton & David Solomonica	1980
State of Hawaii land use district and regulations review	Eckbo, Dean, Austin & Williams	1969
Land use in an urban environment	University of Liverpool, the dept. of civic design	1961
Ethnic Leadership in America	John Highman	1978
Okologisch orientierte Stadt- und Raumentwicklung	Martin C. Neddens	1986
Guideline for establishing marine protected area	Grame Kelleher & Richard Kenchington	1991
Moshav HaBonim the first year's jubilee year 1949-1999	Miriam Webber	1999
Fiscal impacts of land development	Thomas Muller	
The Israel Physical Master Plan	Jacob Dash and Elisha Efrat	1964
Lawn Care		1941
השפעת טיפולים ממשקיים על צימוח בר זית בינוני ברמת הנדיב	שי גטריידה ואבי פרבולוצקי	1991
השפעת אמצעי תקשורת מתקדמים על תפעול ומיקום מפעלים עתירי ידע בישראל	דניאל שפר ואמנון פרנקל	1986

ישראל 2020

תשנט רחל קלוש טיפולוגיות מגורים ומורפולוגיה עירונית